TOWN OF VERNON
CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Regular Meeting Notice
Monday, September 19, 2022, 7:00 P.M.

AGENDA

Call to Order and roll call

Administrative Actions/Requests

g1:6 WY S1d35e

2.1 2022 Election of Officers

2.2 Approval of the Minutes of the December 20, 2021 meeting

New Business
3.1 Update regarding Planning and Zoning/Inland Wetlands Applications, if any
3.2 UCONN Land Use Academy — Conservation Commission

3.3 Town of Vernon — Plan of Conservation and Development (adopted 11/4/2021)
3.3.1 Implementation Plan
3.4 Other Items, if applicable

Other Business/Goals/Discussion

Adjournment

Conservation Commission



RECEIVED
TOWN OF VERNON, CT VERNOR TOWN CLERK
CONSERVATION COMMISSION 21 DEC21 PH I3 13

Monday, December 20, 2021, 7:00 P.M.

DRAFT MINUTES

1. Call to Order and roll call

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chairman Ryan Goad
Members Present: Ryan Goad, Nicholas Cranmer, Jim Simon
Members Absent: Jason Seacat

Staff Present: George McGregor, Town Planner

2.1 Approval of Agenda

No additions.

2.2 Administrative Actions/Requests
Approval of the Minutes of the November 15, 2021 meeting

Mr. Simon MOVED, seconded by Mr.Goad, to accept the minutes of the November 15, 2021 meeting. The Motion carried
unanimously.

42 Pending Planning & Zoning Applications

PZ-2021-19, Village at Naek Road. An Application of Rashid Hamid for a Site Plan and Special Permits
to allow a 70-unit apartment development on multiple parcels located at 291 and 293 Talcottville Rd.
(Assessor ID: Map 3 Block 4 Parcels 9A & 9E) and at 27, 32, 37, 38, and 46 Naek Rd. (Assessor ID: Map
3 Block 4 Parcels 008-8, 7,4, 6, 5). Specials Permits requested from the Planned Develop Zone-Gerber
Farm zoning district (PDZ) include Section 4.24.4.3.2 (multi-family units); 4.24.3.15.1 (more than 40 off
street parking spaces); 4.24.4.3.15.2 (proposed structures within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section
4.24.4.3.15.3 (proposed parking within 200 feet of a residential structure); Section 4.24.4.3.15.4 (aggregate
square footage in excess of 25,000 sq. ft.); Section 4.24.4.3.15.9 (a development having less than the
required yards).

Mr. McGregor briefed the Commission on this pending application with attention paid to the proposed pedestrian Trail along
the Hockanum river.

No action taken.

4.3 Natural Resources

Bolton Lakes Appointment-Mr. Goad MOVED, seconded by Mr. Simon to appoint Mr. Goad as representative of the
Commission to the Bolton Lakes Watershed Conservation Alliance. Motion carried unanimously

6. Adjournment

Mr. Simon, seconded by Mr. Cranmer, motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:21 pm. Motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

N L_mé(‘_l,i m L_}}(/MKZ
George McGregor, AICP -

Town Planner



Roles and Responsibilities of Local Land Use Officials

Conservation Commission

Land Use Academy Fact Sheets clear.uconn.edu/lua

3. Keep records of its meetings and activities and make an
annual report to the municipality in the manner required of
other municipal agencies.

Legal Basis of Authority

The Connecticut General Statutes (CGS) allow municipalities
to establish Conservation Commissions, if they so desire, in
Chapter 97 Section 7-131a.

Any municipality may establish a Conservation Commission by
vote of its legislative body, for the development, conservation,

supervision and regulation of natural resources, including
water resources, within its territorial limits.

Membership

The Conservation Commission shall consist of not fewer than
3, nor more than 11 members and not more than 3 alter-
nates. Alternate members, when seated, shall have all the
powers and duties of a commission member.

Appointments and Removal

Members and alternates are appointed by the chief executive
officer of the municipality. The chief executive officer may
remove any member or alternate only for cause and has the
power to fill any vacancy.

Terms of Office
The legislative body establishing the commission shall desig-
nate terms of office.

Powers and Duties
Conservation Commissions Shall

1..Conduct research into the utilization and possible utiliza-
tion of land areas of the municipality;

2. Keep an index of all open areas, publicly or privately
owned, including open marshlands, swamps and other wet-
lands, for the purpose of obtaining information on the proper
use of such areas;

Conservation Commissions May:

1. Make recommendations to Zoning Commissions, Plan-
ning Commissions, Inland Wetlands Agencies and other
municipal agencies on proposed land use changes;

2. Recommend to the Planning Commission (or if none, to
the chief executive officer or the legislative body) plans and
programs for the development and use of all open areas;

3. Exchange information with the Commissioner of Environ-
mental Protection and said Commissioner may, on request,
assign technical personnel to the commission for assistance
in planning its overall program and for coordinating state
and local conservation activities;

4. Coordinate the activities of unofficial bodies organized for
the purpose of conducting land use research;

5. Advertise, prepare and distribute books, maps, charts,
plans and pamphlets necessary for its purposes;

6. Propose a greenways plan for inclusion in the Plan of
Conservation and Development prepared by the local Plan-
ning Commission;

7. Inventory natural resources;

8. Formulate watershed management plans consistent with
water supply management plans prepared under Section
25-32d of the General Statutes ( plans prepared by water
companies and submitted to the Commissioner of Health
Services);

*Bracketed numbers reference sections of the Connecticut General Statutes, visit cga.ct.gov/2009/pubttitle7.htm

Pl
fy\\\\

S
i

il
rwh n\\\

-~ Land Use Academy

© 2009 University of Connecticut. The University of Connecticut supports all state and federal laws that promote equal opportunity and prohibit discrimination. rev. 09-09



Roles and Responsibilities of Local Land Use Officials

Conservation Commission

Powers and Duties con't.
Conservation Commissions May:

9. Formulate drought management plans;

10. With the approval of such legislative body, acquire land
and easements in the name of the municipality;

11. Promulgate rules and regulations, such as the estab-
lishment of reasonable charges for the use of lands and
easements for any of its purposes;

12. Receive gifts on behalf of the municipality for any of its
purposes and administer the gifts for those purposes, sub-
ject to the terms of the gift;

13. Approve, prior to submission, state grant applications for
programs to preserve or restrict the use of open space land
to conservation or recreation purposes.

14. Apply, if the municipality so designates, for state grants
to preserve or restrict to conservation or recreation pur-
poses, the use of open space;

15. Supervise and manage municipally owned open space or
park property when the agency normally responsible for
such duties delegates that power;

CHECK OUT THESE ONLINE TOOLS AND RESOURCES

¢ CT Association of Conservation and Inland Wetland
Commissions - provides resources for Inland Wetland and Con-
servation commissioners. Visit_caciwc.org

* Online Academy - provides online resources for those who
want a quick refresher or are unable to attend a training. Visit
clear.uconn.edu/lua/online

e Community Resource Inventory Online - provides organ-
ized maps, tutorials and case examples that assist you in developing
a basic inventory of your towns natural and cultural resources.

e Connecticut’s Changing Landscape - provides data about
how CT ‘s landscape has changed since 1985. Local Land Use offi-
cials can use this resource to evaluate the environmental, social and
economic impacts of development that guide their decision making.

For more information
Call: 860-345-4511
Email: clear@uconn.edu

Disclaimer: The materials contained in this fact sheet are a general, lay summary of the roles and responsibilities of local land use commissioners. They should not be relied on as a
valid legal opinion or position. As such, these materials should not be used in place of consulting an attorney about the roles and responsibilities of a local land use commissioner.

University of
Connecticut

College of Agriculture
and Natural Resources

(9 CLEAR

Centerfor Land Use Education & Research

The Land Use Academy is a program of the Center for
Land Use Education and Research (CLEAR). Land, Sea
and Space Grant collaborating.

© 2009 University of Connecticut. The University of Connecticut supports all state and federal laws that promote equal opportunity and prohibit discrimination. rev. 09-09



http://www.caciwc.org
http://www.caciwc.org

A Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

8. Implementation Plan

The following tables are a summary of the goals, objectives, and strategies of this Plan. The Im-
plementation Plan is meant only as a guide for the various boards and commissions responsible
for implementation. The Implementation Plan lists the lead and support entities responsible for
executing each particular action item. In addition, it notes the timeframe for completion of each
action item. In the Implementation Plan:

e Short-term actions are marked with an “S.” Short-term actions are those that should be
implemented within the first year and include those that are less complex, or higher-pri-
ority items that need to be completed prior to other actions.

¢ Medium-term actions are marked with an “M.” Medium-term actions are likely to be
completed within 1 to 5 years.

e Long-term actions are marked with an “L." Long-term actions are those that are likely to
be completed in the last 5 years of the POCD horizon.

e Ongoing efforts are marked with an “O."

Sustainable initiatives are noted in the final column of the Implementation Plan Sustainability is
defined as “meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future gen-
erations to meet their own needs.” Sustainable initiatives span numerous topical areas of the
Plan and align with the overall goals and objectives of the Sustainable CT program. They include
strategies that protect the natural environment; reduce energy consumption and waste gener-
ation; encourage bicycling, walking, and transit use; and provide equitable public services and
housing choices for residents. Some of the actions in the Plan align directly with Sustainable CT
actions, while others can more broadly help the Town achieve its sustainability goals.

Implementing Agency Key

Agency Key Agency Key
Planning and Development Dept. PDD Planning and Zoning Commission PzC
Economic Development Dept. EDD Town Council TC
Water Pollution Control Dept. WPC Design Review Commission DRC
Public Works Dept. DPW Eicoonnomm Development Commis- EDC
Engineering Dept. ENG Inland Wetlands Commission IWC
Parks and Recreation Dept. P&R Open Space Task Force OSTF
Town Administrator TA Water Pollution Control Authority WPCA
Vernon Public Schools VPS Board of Education BOE
Rockville Downtown Association RDA Arts Commission AC
Rockville Public Library RPL Conservation Commission cC
Vernon Housing Authority VHA ls'iOOC:| Historic Properties Commis- LHPC
North Central District Health Dept. | NCDHD Energy Improvement District Board EID




Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Goal 1: Position Historic Downtown Rockville as the economic, civic, social, and cultural center of Tolland County

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
Encourage, thrqugh parjcnership, adaptive reuse of mill sites into residential or mixed-use PZC, PDD EDC, EDD o ’
development with a residential component.
Educate property owners on available financial tools that can be used for housing
development such as historic preservation tax credits, Connecticut Housing Finance EDD EDC S
Authority (CHFA) assistance, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, or Tax-
1.1 Grow Rockville's | Increment Financing.
popJ;iliiin:I:?Lugh Amend regulations to permit smaller multifamily development as a matter of right, with P7C PDD M
. L. site plan approval.
infill development
and adaptive reuse. | consider the use of zoning incentives that allow an increase in permitted residential
density in Rockville for projects that meet other Town policy objectives. Potential
Lo - S . A . PZC PDD M
objectives include those pertaining to historic preservation, sustainability, and provision of
public space.
Encou.rage the use of shared parking arrangements for new residential developments in P7C PDD M
Rockville.
Continue collaboration between the Arts Commission, Rockville Public Library, Rockville AC. RPL
Downtown Association, Parks and Recreation Department, and the Economic Development RDA RDA: P&E{ o ’
Department and Commission to create engaging public events and market these events to EDD, EDC’
the community. '
Strengthen partnerships with regional arts and cultural organizations such as the Greater EDD AC EDC S ’
1.2 Promote arts, Hartford Arts Council and University of Connecticut (UConn). !
culture, and civic
activities and events. | Expand and enhance public infrastructure such as street trees, benches, lighting, plantings, ENG DPW. AC M ’
and public art in Rockville. '
Consider establishing a Municipal Cultural District in Rockville pursuant to Public Act 19-
TC TA M
143.
Through the Municipal Cultural District, work with state and regional organizations to RDA TC, EDD, L ’
market and advocate Rockville's cultural resources and tourism opportunities. EDC




‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 1: Position Historic Downtown Rockville as the economic, civic, social, and cultural center of Tolland County

) Sustainable
Responsible | Support Initiative
Objective Strategies Entities Entity | Timeline
Review and amend zoning in Downtown Rockville to allow for more innovative and
experimental uses to attract visitors. Potential uses include breweries, experimental retail, P7C PDD M
entertainment uses, and artisan manufacturing (small-scale production and sale of goods
within the same premises).
Modify the Downtown Rockville Zoning Regulations to allow professional or business
. o PzC PDD S
offices to occupy the ground floor of buildings.
Review current special permit uses within the Downtown Rockville Zoning Regulations and PZC PDD S
1.3 Enhance consider permitting additional uses with site plan approval, if appropriate.
Rockville's Establish zoning incentives to encourage consolidation of parking lots across properties to P7C PDD L
commercial base. | create a park-once-and-walk environment.
Continue to market Rockville businesses both locally and regionally, in partnership with the EDD EDC, o
Rockville Downtown Association and Chamber of Commerce. RDA
Prioritize the redevelopment, expansion, and redesign of the Courthouse Plaza area TC PZC
defined by Main Street, Court Street, and Brooklyn Street, through incentive, partnership, or PDD, EDD F:DC ' L
other creative means.
Improve signage in Rockville, including directional signage from 1-84 and signage for RDA M
public parking facilities.
Complete the redevelopment of Amerbelle Mill site EDD TC, EDC S ’
. . . ) . EDC,
Continue to pursue grants to remediate remaining brownfield sites. EDD RDA O ’
1.4 Support the Educate property owners and prospective developers on financial incentives available to EDD PDD S
Redevelopment of | ¢4t adaptive reuse and historic preservation.
Mill Sites - - - - - - - -
Review current adaptive reuse zoning requirements and consider more flexible site design
requirements for mill sites that incorporate the riverfront into the design, and create PZC PDD M

greenspace along the river, with attention to natural resource protection and regulation
requirements.




Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Goal 1: Position Historic Downtown Rockville as the economic, civic, social, and cultural center of Tolland County

Responsible | Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline Initiative
Complete the renovation and re-tenanting of the Citizens Block. TC TA S
Consider developing a visual design guideline for Rockville to better communicate desired
architectural design, signage, lighting, materials, and site design features to prospective DRC PzC M
developers and the community at-large.
1.5 Protect
Rockville's historic
resources. Consider establishing a fagade improvement program or local property tax abatement TC £DD M
program to encourage the rehabilitation of historic properties in Rockville.
Educate owners of historic properties on other funding opportunities such as state and
e . EDD PDD O
federal rehabilitation tax credits.
Extend t.he RaI|S-tO-TI.’a.I| east of.Vernon Avenue, or identify an alternative trail routing ENG DPW M
connecting to the trail in Rockville.
Enhance bicycle and pedestrian connections between Rails-to-Trail and Rockville along ENG DPW L ’
Vernon Avenue, Spring Street, Morrison Street, and West Street.
1.6 Enhance Insta.ll bl.cycle. and pedestrlan signage on the Rails-to-Trail directing users to key ENG DPW S
I destinations in Rockville.
Rockville's
connections to the Install bicycle parking and racks in Downtown Rockville, on sidewalks, or places such as at DPW RDA M
town trail and open | Town Hall or the Rockville Public Library.
space networks. T . . o .
P wor Integrate the Hockanum River into Rockville's identity, in accordance with the Hockanum
River Linear Park Master Plan. Strategies may include modifying the Zoning Regulations to
require or incentivize public improvements and strengthen LID requirements along the PDD, EDD,
. ) . . o PZC, EDC L
Hockanum River, securing public access easements, and studying the feasibility of ENG
daylighting portions of the river, reducing the number of outfalls into the river, and
creating protective greenspace along the river as part of future redevelopment efforts.




‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 2: Create thriving, attractive, connected, and diverse business districts and mixed-use corridors

Responsible | Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline Initiative
Develop landscaping and site design standards incorporated into the Zoning Regulations
that are tied to the location of the site as opposed to the zone. For example, all properties
fronting Route 83 should have the same landscaping and site design standards, regardless PzC PDD S
of their zoning designation, to ensure consistency across multiple uses. Single-family
homes should be exempt from these standards.
Strengthen screening and setback requirements for outdoor storage areas and trash P7C PDD S
enclosures within the Route 83 and Route 30 corridors.
2.1 Enhance o ] ] ]
architecture, site Establishing a landscaping design matching grant fund that matches property owner
design, and Iar.1d.scaping investme.nts. These funds could be used to focu§ on pre-existing sites with TC PZC, EDC L
landscaping within minimal or zero plantings in the Route 83 and Route 30 corridors.
ex'Stm? mixed-use Create a Landscaping and Site Design Visual Guide for mixed-use corridors that can
corridors and accompany the Design Review Visual Guide. DRC PZC, PDD M
gateways
Create a corridor-based Design Review Visual Guide with specific information on
recommended materials and architectural details (roof type, windows, colors, signage, etc.) DRC PzZC, PDD M
for each business district.
Enhance welcome signage, directional signage, landscaping, and public realm DPW EDD M
improvements at gateways, prioritizing locations near highway ramps.
Strengthen property maintenance and code enforcement resources in town with a focus on TC PDD L
commercial corridors.
In partnership with the Capitol Region Council of Governments (CRCOG) and the
Connecticut Department of Transportation (CTDOT), complete a Corridor Study of the PDD, EDD,
. . . ENG CRCOG, M 7
Route 83 and Route 30 corridors focusing on traffic flow, safety, access management, CTDOT
transit infrastructure, and pedestrian accessibility.
2.2 Optimize traffic | Work with CTDOT and CTtransit to evaluate the potential for bus pull-offs in the Route 83 PDD, EDD,
flow and enhance and Route 30 corridors to increase safety and improve traffic flow. This should be evaluated ENG CRCOG, M
safety in commercial | as part of the larger corridor study. CTDOT
corridors ) ) . ) . ) .
Consider adding pedestrian lighting requirements to the landscaping and site design
- . : PzC PDD S
standards within commercial and mixed-use zones.
Develop zoning incentives (such as a reduction in parking minimums) to encourage P7C PDD S

property owners to enter into shared parking agreements.

\ 4




Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Goal 2: Create thriving, attractive, connected, and diverse business districts and mixed-use corridors

Responsible | Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline Initiative
Require sidewalk connections between a building's primary entrance and the sidewalk PZC PDD S

system within all commercial and mixed-use zones.

Establishing a sidewalk matching grant fund that matches property owner sidewalk
investments. These funds could be used to fill in gaps in the existing sidewalk network on TC PDD L
Route 83 and Route 30.

Work with CTDOT to incorporate safe pedestrian crossings at all signalized intersections.
Elements that should be considered include dedicated pedestrian signals, marked ENG CTDOT M

2.3 Enhance . . ;
crosswalks, and installation of proper signage.

pedestrian, bicycle,

and transit Establish a zoning incentive (such as a parking reduction) for new developments that

: . . ; L PZC PDD M
connections incorporates bus stop amenities such as seating areas, shelters, and lighting.

Enhance bicycle and pedestrian connections between Vernon's Rail-to-Trail system and the
Route 83 and Route 30 corridors, prioritizing connections on Center Road, Regan Road, ENG DPW L
and Hartford Turnpike.

Incorporate Hockanum River Linear Park trail connections into landscape design plans

within the Route 83 corridor. ENG DPW L

Create separate dimensional standards for small lots under 2 acres in the Route 83 and

Route 30 corridors to provide more flexibility to property owners. PzC PDD M ’

Consider modifying the Zoning Regulations in the Commercial Zone to allow purely
residential developments, so long as they are in structures that are set back at least 200 PzC PDD M
2.4 Encourage the feet from the roadway, reserving the frontage for commercial uses.
redevelopment of

underutilized or Consider modifying the Zoning Regulations in the Commercial Zone to allow for certain
obsolete land uses | light industrial uses, subject to special permit approval. These uses should have the same P7C PDD M
landscape and design standards as commercial uses and should be appropriately buffered
from adjacent residential areas.
Evaluate minimum parking requirements in commercial zones and consider lowering PZC PDD L

parking requirements, where appropriate, to support adaptive reuse.




‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 3: Promote economic growth and business expansion

Responsible | Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity | Timeline | Initiative
Continue to support investment in Vernon's school system and the Rockville High School BOE, TC VPS, TA 0

Career Center.

Continue the promotion of the dual enrollment programs between Rockville High School
(RHS) and Manchester Community College, Goodwin College, and the UConn Early College
3.1 Provide a skilled Experlencg program. Students who. participate in the college dgal enrollment programs can BOE VPS 0
earn credit from RHS and college simultaneously, thus completing college faster and with
more flexibility.

workforce that
supports business
needs

Continue to meet with businesses to understand local workforce needs and skills gaps. EDD EDC 0

Continue to find ways to work with Capital Workforce Partners, the regional workforce
development board, to leverage public and private resources to produce skilled workers EDD EDC 0
and close the skills gap between local employers and residents.

Complete upgrades to the Vernon Water Pollution Control Facility. WPCF TC, TA S ’

3.2 Pursue utility Maintain sewer infrastructure in a state of good repair. DPW ENG, WPCF 0

improvements that | Extend sewer and water service to Interchanges 66 and 67. Evaluate the feasibility of using

DPW,

support economic Tax Increment Financing (TIF) to fund utility extensions and other public improvements ENG WPCE M
development and needed to spur economic development.
land use goals
Encourage expansion of high-speed internet service, prioritizing low-income and EDC EDD M ’

underserved neighborhoods.




Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Goal 3: Promote economic growth and business expansion

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
Expand the Interchange 67 Planned Development Zone to encompass all parcels within the
PzC PDD L
Interchange 67 Node Future Land Use category.
Create a similar Planned Development Zone for properties in the Interchange 66 node. PzC PDD L
3.3 Provid o .
ro'v.n € Maintain a balanced approach to economic development near the Interchange 66 and
opportunities for . . .
] . Interchange 67 corridors. New development should contribute to the economic
industrial . . . . . PZC, CC, IWC PDD, EDD L
development and fiscal health of the community while avoiding negative impacts to natural
development and oy .
. resources within the Tankerhoosen River watershed.
expansion.
Maintain a list of vacant land and available industrial land and buildings. Actively market
the sites to prospective businesses in partnership with regional and statewide organizations EDD EDC O
such as CERC.
Evaluate zoning comprehensively to improve clarity and reduce inconsistency. Look for
ways to reduce the use of special permits in exchange for higher performance standards
. . . . . PzC PDD S
related to architecture, site design, and landscape buffer. Consider a comprehensive update
of the Town Zoning Regulations
Seek to improve related on-line department web pages. Maintain an e-permit system to Al
. allow prospective businesses to fill out permits online to create a more streamlined TA departments S
3.4 Provide an approval process. P
attractive and
supportive business ) . o . .
environment Provide regular education and training opportunities for board and commission members TA All Boards & S
. . with a goal of 100% annual participation. Commissions
including an efficient
regulatory process.
Work with the Connecticut Small Business Development Center to coach new and existing
. . EDD EDC S
businesses in Vernon.
Introduce a business incubator to Rockville, utilizing part of the Citizens Block, or other
D - . EDD EDC, RDA L
building in Downtown, providing low-cost rent to local start-up businesses.
Develop L lai h I ke th I
evelop Land Use process explainers and other tools to make the development process PDD, EDD M

more transparent.



lcampolongo
Highlight


‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 4: Maintain a diverse housing stock that supports people of all ages, income levels, life stages, and backgrounds

Corridor, the 67 Node, and the Route 30 Corridor — East.

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline Initiative
Maintain and expand Vernon's Housing Profile, produced by Partnership for Strong ’
Communities (SCT 11.2.2). PDD
Create an Affordable Housing Plan. PZC PDD S ’
Review and update zoning requirements to permit accessory dwelling units to provide
more flexibility. PzC PDD M
Review and update zoning to encourage mixed-use development in appropriate areas
4.1 Provide a identified in the Future Land Use Plan. PZC PDD M
diversity cff housing | ¢\ a1uate zoning approaches to promote mixed-income development. Approaches include
and housing types | 1o, iring a percentage of affordable units or providing incentives for developers meeting
for all ages and mixed-income provisions. PZC PDD L
income levels.
Promote the Elderly and Disabled Tax Relief program to encourage current residents to
remain in Vernon. Assessor o)
Maintain existing Vernon Housing Authority (VHA) units in a state of good repair. Maintain
or increase the number of affordable units in VHA properties if they are redeveloped.
VHA 0
Support the use of Connecticut Housing Finance Authority mortgage programs to expand
homeownership opportunities for low- and moderate-income residents. VHA M
Support a range of residential densities and housing types by scale, height, and
architectural style, in accordance with the Future Land Use Plan and Residential Densities PzC PDD 0
Plan.
4.2 P;'(:m?;e:t.ralnge Modify the Town's Zoning Regulations to allow for a range of residential densities for
? . esidentia . multifamily dwellings for different zones, in accordance with the Residential Densities Plan. PzC PDD M
densities and housing . . . . . .
Consider setting density guideposts using units per acre.
types.
Encourage housing diversity of unit type within mixed-use settings within the following
Future Land Use Policy Areas: Downtown Rockville, the Rockville Gateways, the Mixed-Use PzC PDD 0]




Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Goal 4: Maintain a diverse housing stock that supports people of all ages, income levels, life stages, and backgrounds

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline Initiative

Consider adding universal design provisions to the Zoning Regulations, requiring or
incentivizing new development to provide units that are accessible to anyone regardless of PzC PDD L ’
age or disability status.

Incorporate sustainable design requirements or incentives into the zoning code. For
example: increased permitted density when measures like lid stormwater management,
energy generation, or active transportation amenities are included in the site plan
application.

PzC PDD L 7

4.3 Grow sustainable,
efficient, and

accessible housing Promote energy efficiency in new housing as a means of reducing overall housing utility

choices. costs. pzC PDD M

Educate property owners on available funding sources for sustainability and energy
efficiency upgrades, such as the Connecticut Green Bank and Commercial Property EDD EID o)
Assessed Clean Energy (C-PACE) programs.

Develop residential design and performance standards for infill residential developments. PzC PDD L




‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 5: Maintain high quality, sustainable, and equitable public facilities, and services

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
Complete the ongoing and planned upgrades to town facilities. TA TC o]
. . Monitor conditions and space needs at town facilities and make improvements through TA All L
5.'1 C‘ontlnue.to Invest | e Capital Improvement Plan, as needed. departments
in high quality town
facilities, ] ] ] ]
infrastructure. and Continue the local road resurfacing and sidewalk construction programs. DPW ENG
services Conduct a conditions assessment of the existing sidewalk system to prioritize repairs. ENG DPW M ’
Evaluate the 2020 Census upon release to measure potential impacts of changing TA All S
demographics. departments
Create a comprehensive bicycle and pedestrian plan for the Town (SCT 6.5.4). ENG DPW S ’
5.2 Improve bicycle, Improve bicycle and pedestrian connections between the Rail-to-Trail and town facilities
: i : ENG DPW L 7
pedestrian, and transit | and schools in Vernon Center.
connections to town o ) ) .
facilities Prioritize trail and sidewalk connections to schools and green spaces. ENG DPW L ’
Adopt a Complete Streets Policy (SCT 6.1.3). TC ENG, PDD M ’
Improve public awareness of and access to Stickney Hill Preserve, as well as other popular
park sites (Henry Park & Fox Hill Tower, Snipsic Lake, Papermill Pond; market as a P&R OSTF S ’
destination point for rails-to-trails users, including the regional travelers on the East Coast
Greenway.
5.3 Enhance access to
open space and Enhance bicycle and sidewalk connections between Rockville and Henry Park. P&R OSTF S ’
tional - - -
recrea |.0f13 . Improve public awareness of and access to Stickney Hill Preserve, as well as other popular
opportunities in . . L .
Rockuville park sites (Henry Park & Fox Hill Tower, Snipsic Lake, Papermill Pond; market as a ENG P&R DPW L ’
) destination point for rails-to-trails users, including the regional travelers on the East Coast '
Greenway.
Extend the Hockanum River Linear Park Trail from Papermill Pond to Snipsic Lake trails. ENG P&R, DPW L




Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Goal 6: Cooperate with local and regional organizations to promote the health and wellbeing of the region

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
6.1 Continue to Continue to work with neighboring municipalities to implement the recommendations EDD EDC. CRCOG o
participate in regional | from the regional Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS). '
land use, economic
development, and
transportation
initiatives through Continue to participate in regional land use planning and transportation initiatives A PDD. ENG o
CRCOG through CRCOG. '
6.2 Support Support the extension of CTfastrak service east of the Connecticut river, including TC TA EDD M
enhancements to the | connections between Vernon and the UConn campus in Mansfield. '
regional roadway and | Aqyocate for enhanced bus stop amenities at park & ride locations such as larger seating TA, EDD,
transit systems areas, improved lighting, and pre-pay ticket kiosks. Tc PDD L
Continue to work with regional groups in the areas of land conservation and recreation, Regional
including Hockanum River Park committees in other towns, the Northern Connecticut OSTE CC conservation o ’
Land Trust, the Hockanum River Watershed Association, Manchester Land Trust, Friends ! L
of Bolton Lakes, Bolton Land Trust, Bolton Walk-Hike, and the Ellington Trails Committee. organizations
6.3 Work with Regional
neighboring towns on | Support regional efforts to complete the East Coast Greenway in Greater Hartford. OSTF, CC conservation L
land conservation, organizations
rails-to-trails, waste
management, and
other conservation Continue to participate in statewide product stewardship initiatives such as the PaintCare DPW o ’
issues that cross-town | and mattress recycling programs.
boundaries
Continue membership in the Bolton Lakes Watershed Conservation Alliance in efforts to e OSTF o

protect the watershed and water quality of Bolton Lake.



lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight


‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 7: Build a livable, healthy, resilient, and sustainable Vernon

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
Maintain Silver Level certification or higher through Sustainable CT. TA EDD ¢} ’
Incorporate, Identify, and Implement Sustainable CT Sustainability Concepts (SCT 5.1.1B)
- Land Use Patterns
- Mumapa! Programs and O.pergfclons TA £DD S ’
. - Community Character & Livability
7.1 Continue to LT o
. . - Economic vitality & resilience
implement sustainable b
. . - Resilient infrastructure
policies and actions
using the Sustainable
CT framework. Incorporate sustainable development best practices around green energy, energy
e . : ) PZC PDD M 7
efficiency, and low-impact development into the Town zoning code.
S . - . All b
Offer an annual sustainability training course for Board and Commission members, in TA a:grds M ’
partnership with Sustainable CT. .
commissions

Implement new measures that improve fuel efficiency and reduce emissions for the Town DPW TA M ’
fleet.
Continue to evaluate opportunities to install renewable energy projects, such as solar TC M ’
panels, at Town properties.

7.2 Support municipal | Continue to convert Town buildings to natural gas. TC, BOE TA, VPS S ’
energy efficiency, Complete the creation of "green," local, and/or energy efficiency standards in the Town's TC A L ’
green energy,.and procurement policy for materials.

waste reduction
programs. Explore options to create of a food scrap/ composting program at the Transfer Station or DPW L ’
partner with a private business to provide this service.
Install electric vehicle charging stations at municipal properties and pursue funding
through the Connecticut Green Bank and the Connecticut Department of Energy and TC TA, EID M ’

Environmental Protection.




Goal 7: Build a livable, healthy, resilient, and sustainable Vernon

Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
Implement the recommendations of the Capitol Region Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
(NHMP) and prioritize Hazard Mitigation Goals through the Sustainable CT program via
these actions: (SCT 5.1.1b)
- Update and Map Natural Hazard Areas
- Encourage land protection within natural hazard areas; discourage development or PZC, ENG OSTF, CC, TC L ’
redevelopment in natural hazard areas
7.3 Strengthen - Limit access (roads, transportation networks) to natural hazard areas
resiliency, disaster - Prioritize the protection of critical facilities and cultural resources that are located in
preparedness vulnerable areas
capabilities, and
hazard mitigation Conduct a study of drainage problems identified in the NHMP, including Franklin Road, ENG L ’
planning. the Manchester Flats area, and Frederick Road.
Evaluate the costs and benefits of joining FEMA's Community Rating System. TA TC S ’
Support periodic tree limb inspection and maintenance programs to minimize potential DPW 0 ’
for downed power lines.
Develop a phased approach to replacing aboveground utility lines with underground ENG DPW L ’
utility lines, taking advantage of opportunities such as streetscaping projects.
Continue public health education, programs, and services, in partnership with the North NCDHD 0 ’
Central District Health Department.
7.4 Support progral.ns Identify sites that can support community gardens in Vernon, in partnership with regional
that promote public . OSTF, RDA cc M ’
. farmers and the UConn Tolland County Extension Center.

health and wellbeing
Continue to provide education and outreach to residents impacted by crumbling TA TC 0
foundations on available funding sources and state programs.



lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight


‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 8: Protect, connect, and promote Vernon's natural and historic resources

Objective

Strategies

Responsible
Entities

Support
Entity

Timeline

Sustainable
Initiative

8.1 Foster open space
and trail connectivity

Review and update the Open Space Plan as appropriate. Maintain, update, and Open
Space inventory, identifying properties with high conservation or scenic value for
potential future protection (SCT 3.4.1 and 3.4.3) that do not have permanent protections;
review deeds and work with owners to permanently preserve those parcels.

OSTF

CC

2

Continue to maintain contact with owners of desired properties in the Open Space Plan.
Continue collaboration with area land trusts in the acquisition of desired parcels. Pursue
funding through the State’s Open Space and Watershed Land Acquisition Program or
Farmland Preservation Program and other grant sources.

OSTF

P&R, TA, TC

Prioritize open space acquisition in the Tankerhoosen River watershed, in accordance with
the Open Space Plan.

OSTF

P&R

Develop an Urban Open Space Plan focused on small parks, natural areas, recreation, and
community gardens within the built environment. Amend the Zoning Ordinance to
require quality, useable open space in all development projects.

OSTF, PZC

PDD, P&R

Continue to acquire land or secure public access or conservation easements along the
Hockanum River in accordance with the Hockanum River Linear Park Master Plan.

P&R

TA, TC

Establish policy, zoning incentives, or requirements to enhance public access along the
Hockanum River as part of future development proposals.

PzC

PDD, P&R

Maintain commitment to the Tankerhoosen Watershed Management Plan: identify
specific implementation measures from the plan to prioritize.

CC, IwC

P&R, PDD

Add zoning incentives/requirements to further the use of Low Impact Design (LID),
especially for properties near the Tankerhoosen and Hockanum Rivers. (SCT 3.8.2.b).
Strengthen LID regulations; review situations that might require LID use rather than
having it as an option (i.e. “shall” in lieu of “may".)

PZC

IWC

Continue to update and implement the Town's Stormwater Management Plan in
compliance with state MS4 requirements.

ENG, DPW

IWC

As part of the MS4 plan, educate residents on best practices to reduce stormwater runoff
to improve water quality. Direct them towards additional educational resources from
organizations such as the Center for Land Use Education and Research (CLEAR).

ENG, DPW

IWC

N (N W VNN VN W v\

Educate landowners on water quality issues and techniques for protecting water quality.
Focus should include measures to eliminate the invasive species threats to the Bolton
Lakes system; maintenance or creation of vegetated buffer strips along lakes and streams;
use of non-chemical fertilizers and pesticides; septic design and maintenance. Provide
requirements or incentives in the zoning code to reduce impervious surfaces and/or treat
water before discharge or infiltration.

IWC

CcC

\



lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight

lcampolongo
Highlight


Plan of Conservation and Development | Town of Vernon k

Goal 8: Protect, connect, and promote Vernon's natural and historic resources

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
Continue to monitor water quality in the Tankerhoosen River and Bolton Lakes; in
partnership with local conservation organizations, organize a repeat of the 2006 _
comprehensive chemical water quality studies to evaluate long term changes; continue to Conservation OSTF, CC S ”
participate in the annual DEEP volunteer water quality monitoring program within the Groups
watershed.
Implement recommendations outlined in the Tankerhoosen Watershed Management Conservation OSTF, CC S [
Plan and expand management planning in the Bolton Lakes Watershed. Groups
Monitor groundwater levels near Bolton Lakes to ensure that the diversion of water out Conservation
of the watershed does not impact groundwater levels; continue to annually monitor Grouns OSTF, CC @) ’
aquatic invasive species as well as toxic and non-toxic algae in the lakes. P
Publish an Open Space map on the Town website noting where parking areas and public P&R S ”
access points are located.
8.3 Improve Establish partnerships between local conservation organizations and Vernon Public P&R VPS Conservation M
stewardship and Schools to better market open space and recreational opportunities to youth. ' Groups
awareness of existing Conservation
open spaces and Expand opportunities for canoe and kayak access. P&R, CC Gror:psl L
recreational
opportunities Improve ADA accessibility to recreation and open space areas. P&R DPW M ’
Develop a habitat-based management plan for Valley Falls Park. P&R cC M ﬂ
Update and maintain a historic and scenic resources inventory. LHPC O ’
Maintain Town-owned historic properties in a state of good repair. LHPC TC, TA @]
Preserve Clark Farm as a Heritage Farm. LHPC L
Acknowledge.the Town's commitmfent to active, working local farms and implement OSTF, CC PZC L ’
measures designed to protect the right to farm
8.4 Protect Vernon's
historical and scenic Consider creating historic preservation zoning incentives, for example, excluding historic
resources structures up to a certain size from lot coverage calculations or creating more flexible use PzC DRC, LHPC M ’
or site design standards for adaptive reuse.
Educate owners of historic properties on other funding opportunities such as state and
e . LHPC EDD M
federal rehabilitation tax credits.
Commence efforts to evaluate the relationship of suburban design and development to LHPC PZC, DRC L

Historic Preservation




‘ Town of Vernon | Plan of Conservation and Development

Goal 8: Protect, connect, and promote Vernon's natural and historic resources

areas.

Responsible Support Sustainable
Objective Strategies Entities Entity Timeline | Initiative
Develop and maintain a natural resource and wildlife inventory (NRW) (SCT 3.5.2) P&R OSTF, CC S ’
Market historical, cultural, and natural resource elements in partnership with state and
8.5 Promote Vernon's | regional organizations. The creation of a Municipal Cultural District can help leverage EDC EDD, M ’
natural and historic state resources for marketing and promotion.
resources as part of
larger marketing and | Provide directional signage on main roads and the trail to points of interest. DPW P&R L
branding efforts Develop and publish walking or cycling routes that highlight Vernon's natural and historic
resources. Potential locations include Talcottville (Talcottville Historic District and EDC EDD, P&R, L ’
Tankerhoosen Ravine), Valley Falls, and Rockville (Rockville Historic District and LHPC
Hockanum River).
Clearly identify up-to-date natural hazard areas and map them on the future land use
8.6 Discourage land ma Y fyup P pzC PDD S ’
development within P
natural hazard areas
while enco.uragi.ng]and Adopt use restrictions, buffer and setback regulations, LID measures, and other tools to PZC PDD L ’
protection within mitigate impacts on natural hazard areas
natural hazard areas — — — :
Harden/protect existing critical facilities and cultural resources located in vulnerable TA DPW M ’




	9.19.2022 - Conservation Commission Agenda
	2. ConservationCommissiondraftminutes12-20-2021
	3. UCONN CLEAR - luafactsheetsconservation
	4. POCD - AdoptedandEffectiveNovember42021 - Implementation Plan Only - CONSERVATION COMMISSION



